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May 26, 2016 
 
 
Loc Pham, Karim Abrouq  
and Wendy Brigham-Abrouq 
PLAK Property Investments, LLC 
809 St. John Street 
Cottage Grove, Wisconsin 53527 
 
RE: Approval of a conditional use to allow construction of a two-family twin residence at 1815-1817 

Dondee Road within 300 feet of a zoning lot containing another two-family twin building [LNDUSE-
2016-00039]. 

 
 Gentlepersons; 
 
At its May 23, 2016 meeting, the Plan Commission found the standards met and approved your 
conditional use for 1815-1817 Dondee Road. The conditions of approval in the following sections shall 
be satisfied prior to issuance of building permits for the project.  
 
Please contact Brenda Stanley of the City Engineering Division at 261-9127 if you have questions 
regarding the following three (3) items: 
 
1. A site specific drainage plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the City Engineering 

Division prior to release of building permits. This plan shall include foundation elevations and 
grading plans for the lot and other topographic information as needed to document drainage 
patterns. 

 
2. The applicant shall replace all sidewalk and curb and gutter abutting the property, which is damaged 

by the construction, or any sidewalk and curb and gutter that the City Engineer determines needs to 
be replaced because it is not at a desirable grade regardless of whether the condition existed prior 
to beginning construction. 

 
3. Each unit of a duplex building shall be served by a separate and independent sanitary sewer lateral 

or an ownership/maintenance agreement (recorded) shall be in place prior to plan approval. 
 
Please contact Jeff Quamme of the City Engineering Division–Mapping Section at 266-4097 if you have any 
questions regarding the following item: 
 
4. Note: The site plan and floor plans conform satisfactorily to the recorded condominium plat. 
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Please contact Dennis Cawley of the Madison Water Utility at 261-9243 if you have any questions 
regarding the following item: 
 
5. Note: All operating private wells shall be identified and permitted and any unused private wells shall 

be abandoned by the Madison Water Utility in accordance with MGO Section 13.21. 
 
Please contact Bill Sullivan of the Madison Fire Department at 261-9658 if you have any questions 
regarding the following item: 
 
6. Note: Madison Fire Department recommends the installation of a residential fire sprinkler system 

for each unit in accordance with NFPA 13D and SPS 382.40(3)(e). 
 
Please contact Eric Halvorson, Traffic Engineering Division, at 266-6527 if you have any questions 
regarding the following item: 
 
7. All parking facility design shall conform to the standards in MGO Section 10.08(6). 
 
Please contact my office at 261-9632 if you have questions about the following item: 
 
8. In order to receive final plan approval and building permits, label Dondee Road on the site plan. 

 
Specific questions regarding the comments or conditions contained in this letter should be directed to 
the commenting agency. 
 
Please now follow the procedures listed below for obtaining permits for your project: 
 
1. After the plans have been revised per the above conditions, please file seven (7) sets of complete, 

fully dimensioned, and to-scale plans, the appropriate site plan review application and fee pursuant 
to Section 28.206 of the Zoning Code, and any other documentation requested herein with the 
Zoning Administrator, Room LL-100, Madison Municipal Building, 215 Martin Luther King, Jr. 
Boulevard. This submittal shall all also include one (1) complete digital plan set in PDF format. The 
sets of final revised plans or documents will be circulated by Zoning staff to the City department 
staff listed above for their final approval. 

 
2. This letter shall be signed by the applicant and property owner (if not the applicant) to acknowledge 

the conditions of approval and returned to the Zoning Administrator when requesting building 
permit approval. 

 
3. No alteration of this proposal shall be permitted unless approved by the Plan Commission, provided, 

however, the Zoning Administrator may issue permits for minor alterations. No alteration of a 
conditional use shall be permitted unless approved by the Plan Commission provided, however, the 
Zoning Administrator following consideration by the alderperson of the district, may approve minor 
alterations or additions which are approved by the Director of Planning and Community and 
Economic Development and are compatible with the concept approved by the Plan Commission and 
the conditional use standards. This approval shall become null and void one (1) year after the date 
of the Plan Commission unless the use is commenced, construction is under way, or a valid building 
permit is issued and construction commenced within 6 months of the issuance of said building 
permit. Where the plans have not been altered from the Plan Commission’s approval, and the 
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I hereby acknowledge that I understand and 
will comply with the above conditions of 
approval for this project. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature of Property Owner  
(If Not Applicant) 

conditional use has expired, the Director of Planning and Community and Economic Development 
may, after consultation with the Alderperson of the District, approve an extension for up to 24 
months from the expiration date.  The Plan Commission shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for 
the purpose of resolving complaints against the approved conditional use permit.  

 
If you have any questions regarding obtaining your building permits, please contact the Zoning 
Administrator at 266-4551. If you have any questions or if may be of any further assistance, please do 
not hesitate to contact my office at 261-9632. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Timothy M. Parks 
Planner 
 
 
cc: Brenda Stanley, City Engineering Division 

Jeff Quamme, City Engineering Division–Mapping Section 
Eric Halvorson, Traffic Engineering Division 
Jenny Kirchgatter, Assistant Zoning Administrator 
Dennis Cawley, Madison Water Utility 
Bill Sullivan, Madison Fire Department 
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